
HEALTH SCRUTINY 
SUB-COMMITTEE

________________________________________________

Tuesday, 12 February 2019 at 6.30 p.m.
Room 702 – Town Hall Mulberry Place

This meeting is open to the public to attend. 

Members:
Chair: Councillor Kahar Chowdhury
Vice-Chair: Councillor Eve McQuillan

Councillor Gabriela Salva Macallan, Councillor Kyrsten Perry and Councillor Andrew 
Wood
Substitutes: 
Councillor Faroque Ahmed, Councillor Asma Islam, Councillor Mohammed Pappu and 
Councillor Peter Golds
Co-opted Members:
David Burbidge (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Representative)

[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]

Contact for further enquiries:
Rushena Miah
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG
Tel: 020 7364 5554
E-mail: rushena.miah@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee

Scan this code for 
an electronic 
agenda 

Page 1



Public Information
Attendance at meetings.
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis. 

Audio/Visual recording of meetings.
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page.

Mobile telephones
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting. 

Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.     

Bus: Routes: D3, D6, D7, D8, 15, 108, and115 all 
stop near the Town Hall. 
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place 
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall. 
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm)

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx) 
Meeting access/special requirements. 
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda 

Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned.
Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.  

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date. 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.  

QR code for 
smart phone 
users.

Page 2

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


PAGE
NUMBER(S)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 5 - 8

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring 
Officer.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 9 - 12

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Health Scrutiny 
Panel held on 11 December 2018.

3. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

4. HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE 13 - 36

This item aims to present an overview of the relationship between health and 
substance misuse in Tower Hamlets, review substance misuse prevention 
services in place and review the quality of the current treatment services 
available to support people with alcohol and substance misuse issues. 

5. HEALTH BASED PLACES OF SAFETY 37 - 42

CCGs must ensure plans for the designation, and appropriate staffing of CCG-
commissioned health-based places of safety (HBPoS). In May 2018 the East 
London Health Care Partnership produced a pan-London business case for 
fewer better quality HBPoS.  This paper outlines the recommended changes and 
how they will impact on Tower Hamlets residents.

6. REABLEMENT SERVICE SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN 43 - 56

This report provides an updated overview of the activities and work that has 
been undertaken by the Reablement Service in meeting the eighteen 
recommendations adopted (in November 2017) following the Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee report from April 2017. It also looks at the Draft Long 
Term Funding Plan for Tower Hamlets CCG.

7. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BUDGETS 57 - 74

This item aims to provide an overview of the budget available to fund Adult 
Social Care services provided by the Council, the type of services it funds, the 
draft 3 year medium term financial strategy for adult social care. 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Next Meeting of the Sub-Committee
The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee will be held on Tuesday, 30 April 
2019 at 6.30 p.m. Town Hall Mulberry Place.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 

When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:

Asmat Hussain, Corporate Director of Governance & Monitoring Officer, 
Telephone Number: 020 7364 4800

Page 6



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
11/12/2018

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

1

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE

HELD AT 6.40 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2018

COMMITTEE ROOM ONE - TOWN HALL MULBERRY PLACE

Name Role
Councillor Kahar Chowdhury Chair
Councillor Eve McQuillan Vice-Chair
Councillor Andrew Wood Member
Councillor Gabriela Salva Macallan Member
Councillor Kyrsten Perry Member
Councillor Muhammad Harun Member
David Burbidge Healthwatch Co-opted Member
Councillor Denise Jones Cabinet Member for Adults Health & Wellbeing

Officers:
David Jones Interim Divisional Director Adult Social Care
David Oates Performance & Intelligence Manager
Denise Radley Corporate Director Health Adults Community
Jack Kerr Strategy & Policy Manager
Joanne Starkie Head of Strategy & Policy
Keith Burns Programme Director - Health Commissioning
Kelly Tanner ExcelCare Homecare
Rushena Miah Committee Officer
Warwick Tomsett Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

There was a declaration of a non-pecuniary interest from Councillor Andrew 
Wood. Councillor Wood said that he has moved his father to a care home 
operated by HC One Care which was mentioned in the supplemental report. 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2018 were approved as an 
accurate record and signed by the Chair.

RESOLVED:
1. To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2018. 

3. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

4. TOWER HAMLETS ADULT SOCIAL CARE CHARGING IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT 

The Committee received a report on the Adult Social Care Charging Impact 
Assessment presented by Joanne Starkie, Head of Strategy and Policy – 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
11/12/2018

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

2

Health, Adults and Community and David Jones, Interim Divisional Director 
Adult Social Care.

 Members requested to see the raw data from REAL’s survey to verify 
the statistics in the report. Officers said they could provide this.

 A query was raised about the financial impact of care for spouses. 
Officers responded that the person receiving the care would be billed 
unless there was a power of attorney. 

 Officers acknowledge that communications about the charging policy 
were not as clear early on but they had since improved. The Charging 
Team had gone out into the community to engage with people about 
the new policy and to provide advice. 

 Members requested a briefing on the charging policy for spouses. 
Officers agreed to produce this. 

 Members queried the 47 care packages that were stopped. Officers 
explained that some of these people decided they did not want to pay 
for the service and went back to prior care arrangements. Officers said 
systems were in place to ensure suitable care arrangement were in 
place to safeguard these adults. 

 There were fewer cases of people not being assessed and being 
invoiced the full amount due to investigation and engagement by the 
Charging Team and REAL in advising people to fill out the forms. 

 A Member highlighted the need for sensible commissioning considering 
a larger segment of the population was expected to require care 
services in the near future. 

 It was confirmed that those who were exempt under Section 117 but 
had been erroneously charged, had received reimbursement. 

 Members queried what mechanisms were in place to identify a change 
in circumstance.  Officers replied that care needs were assessed on an 
annual basis. 

 A Member queried whether debt recovery for care costs was followed 
up by the wider council’s debt recovery team or whether there was a 
specialist care debt recovery team. Officers explained that debt 
recovery was discussed at a special panel chaired by David Jones 
Interim Divisional Director of Adult Social Care. The panel was 
responsible for reclaiming debt sensitively on a case by case basis.

ACTIONS:
 Members requested to see the raw data from REAL’s survey to verify 

the statistics in the report. Officers said they could provide this.
 Members requested a briefing on the charging policy for spouses. 

Officers agreed to produce the brief.

RESOLVED:
1. To note the key findings from the impact assessment. 

Page 10



HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
11/12/2018

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

3

5. TOWER HAMLETS ADULT SOCIAL CARE SERVICE USER SURVEY 
2017/18 

The Committee received a report from David Oates, Senior Performance & 
Intelligence Manager – Health Adults & Community, on the Tower Hamlets 
Adult Social Care Service User Survey 2017/18.

 There was a correction made on page 35 of the pack. It was noted that 
the response rates were 57% female, not 43%, and 43% Male, not 
57%. 

 Members advised that it would have been useful to have benchmarking 
figures compared to neighbouring boroughs included in the report. 
Officers noted this for future reports. 

 NHS Digital did not provide a definition of ‘anxious’ or ‘depressed’ in 
the survey. 

 The survey was purely paper based and received a 25% response 
rate. This was considered to be a good response rate. Officers worked 
with NHS Digital to improve the questions readability. The free text box 
enabled officers to make referrals and take action on individual cases.  

RESOLVED:
1. To note the key findings in the report. 

6. RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING CARE HOMES AND HOME CARE 
PROVISION IN THE BOROUGH: QUALITY AND CAPACITY 

The Committee received the report of Denise Radley, Corporate Director of 
Health Adults & Community and Warwick Tomsett, Joint Director of Integrated 
Commissioning, on Residential and Nursing Care Homes and Home Care 
Provision in the Borough. There was also a presentation from Keith Burns 
tabled on the day outlining care home quality and capacity in the UK. 

In response to Member questions officers provided the following:
 John Tucker House was not listed as a care home in the report 

because it was classified as sheltered housing and was not regulated 
by the CQC. 

 It was noted that the relatively low level of accident and emergency 
hospital admissions from care homes reflected the quality of Tower 
Hamlets care homes and their ability to effectively care for ill patients.

 Tower Hamlets Council is 1 of 39 registered reablement services. The 
Council commissions six reablement services. 

 Kelly Tanner from Excel Care was invited to comment on discussions 
from a provider perspective. She said the Home Care Contract 2017 
had improved joined up working with the local authority. The Ethical 
Care Charter had improved pay by joining care homes to the London 
Living Wage. Travel expenses were reimbursed and there was 
improved recruitment and retention.  Tower Hamlets was unique in it’s 
multi-disciplinary work and joint working arrangements. She said the 

Page 11



HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
11/12/2018

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

4

Council had been helpful and supportive towards care workers in the 
borough. 

 The new care contract has commissioned six providers to work across 
four quadrants. It was noted that this reduced travel time between 
appointments and allowed more time for care. Carers were paid for 
travel time if working under the same provider. 

 There was a discussion about the proportion of care workers working 
the minimum 12 hour week per Ethical Care Charter guidelines.  Ms 
Tanner explained that care workers tended to prefer flexible hours 
rather than the prescribed 12 hours agreed by the provider because 
flexible hours offered more of a choice of when they could work. 

 Councillor Muhammad Harun came to the realisation that he had a 
disclosable pecuniary interest to declare in that his wife worked for 
Apasen a sub-contractor of Excel Care. No further questions were 
taken from Councillor Harun. 

 It was noted that the Council had limited powers in preventing a care 
home to close due to the sale of the business or change of use, unless 
there was a Covenant Agreement in place. 

 Ms Tanner explained the professional requirements and training for 
care workers. She said that all are workers were required to complete a 
Care Certificate which comprised of 15 standards, unit tests and a 
workbook. And that induction training at the care home included 
information on people’s cultural needs and efforts were made to 
accommodate certain cultural foods or languages. Managers were 
responsible for one to one meetings with care workers; the meetings 
provided an opportunity to discuss policies and procedures. 

 Although recruitment efforts were being made to hire bilingual staff, it 
was recognised that sourcing care workers with a broad range of 
community language skills was a challenge.

RESOLVED:
1. To note the report. 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

There was no other business. 
The meeting ended at 8.58 p.m. 

Chair, Councillor Kahar Chowdhury
Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee

Page 12



Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
12 February 2019

Report of: Denise Radley, Corporate Director, Health, 
Adults and Communities

Classification:
Unrestricted 

Health and Substance Misuse 

Originating Officer(s) Dezlee Dennis-Substance Misuse Commissioning 
Maanger, Katie Cole – Associate Director of Public 
Health

Wards affected All Wards

The Drug and Alcohol Action Team in collaboration with Public Heath colleagues  
have submitted a presentation to the Health Scrutiny Committee addressing the 
following areas:

 The relationship between health and substance misuse in Tower Hamlets.
 

 A review of the substance misuse prevention services in place in Tower 
Hamlets. 

 A review of the quality of current treatment services to support people with 
alcohol and substance misuse issues.

It should be noted that the Health Scrutiny Committee requested the report authors 
to make recommendations to inform the commissioning of new services. The Reset 
adult integrated drug and alcohol treatment contracts were put out to tender on 23rd 
January 2019 following an extensive consultation with key stakeholders. The Service 
Specifications and Key Performance Indicator Framework for the three contract lots 
have been strengthened to reflect the areas highlighted as requiring improvement in 
the consultation. 

Recommendations:

The Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the work being undertaken by the Drug and Alcohol Action Team and 
Public Health colleagues on substance misuse prevention and treatment and 
raise any areas of concern. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Health Scrutiny  

Substance Misuse and Health – 

impacts, outcomes and next steps 

Dezlee Dennis –  Substance Misuse Commissioning Manager 

Dr Katie Cole  - Associate Director Public Health  

Matthias Schneppel – Information and Needs Analyst Drug and 

Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) 

 
12th Feb 2019   

P
age 15



 
Context - Substance Misuse 

Strategy 

 
1. Prevention and Behaviour Change 
• Information and Awareness, engagement, education, prevention campaigns, health 

messages, hidden harm and safeguarding vulnerable young people and adults, support 

for substance misusing population 

 

2. Treatment 
• Service engagement of those in need, accessible provision available to all, screening 

and identification, assessment and recovery planning, recovery orientated treatment – 

aftercare and reintegration, peer mentoring and self-help.  

 

3. Enforcement and Regulation 
• Integrated Offender Management, licencing and regulatory enforcement, dedicated and 

targeted operations, enforcement of controlled drinking zone, employing a range of 

enforcement and regulatory powers available to reduce harm 

 

P
age 16



Prevalence – what we know   

(Source: PHE Prevalence data, 2014/15, published 2017)  

Opiate and/or Crack Users – Top 5 
LAs in London  

Total (n) 

Tower Hamlets 2,798 

Hackney 2,553 

Ealing 2,464 

Newham 2,400 

Lambeth 2,387 

Prevalence estimates Tower Hamlets – 

Opiate & / or Crack users (OCU) 

 

• Prevalence of opiate and/or crack 

users (2,800 OCUs) highest in London  

 

• Unmet need (not in treatment) in Tower 

Hamlets around 52% in 2017/18  

 

Dependent drinkers in Tower Hamlets  

 

• More than 3,400 dependent drinkers 

in the borough  

 

• Tower Hamlets had the 7th highest rate 

of dependent drinkers in London 

 

 
(Source: PHE Prevalence estimate, 2017, Health Survey for England)  

• In general, harmful & dependent 

drinking and problematic drug 

user the highest in deprived 

communities  

P
age 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



Impacts on health & health 

services  

• The opiate treatment population is ageing: with clients suffering from 

increasing complex health issues while deaths related to substance 

misuse remain above the national average (TH rate of 4.5 per 100,000 

population above London & England rates) 

• Blood borne viruses: Clients injecting drugs have high Hep C prevalence 

rates (50%) and high likelihood of living with Hep C 

• Mental health: Treatment population:  Around 47% of new clients have 

mental health needs – above national average (40%)  

• Respiratory health: Heroin users have high prevalence rates of Asthma 

and COPD 

• Smoking prevalence: 73% of clients smoked at treatment start 

compared to 18% of the Tower Hamlets population 

• Alcohol specific death rate: 9th highest in London with 10 death per 

100,000 population  

 

 
 
 

P
age 20



Impacts  on health & health 

services  

• Many service users and treatment naïve drug and alcohol users continue to be 

in frequent contact with health and enforcement services 

 

• Hospital admissions, alcohol related deaths, ambulance call outs and alcohol 

related ASB indicate high levels of Alcohol related harm  

 

• Hospital admissions - Diagnosis of drug related mental health and behavioural 

disorders: Rate increasing in Tower Hamlets. The rate (293) of admission 

episodes per 100,000 was double the London and England rate. 

 

• Alcohol-specific Hospital admissions: Rate of 716 per 100,000 people was 

significantly worse than in London (523) and England (563) 

 

•  Ambulance call outs: Drug overdose call outs and alcohol related call outs 

remain high in Tower Hamlets, indicating ongoing demand and need.  

 

P
age 21



Focus on Prevention - 
Education  

• Schools deliver substance misuse education to pupils through 

the PHSE (personal, health, social and economic) curriculum. 

• The Public Health Directorate funds substance misuse 

prevention for children and young people through: 

 

– 1) Safe East (Integrated Young People’s Service, delivered by Compass 

UK). 

– 2) Healthy Lives team in LBTH (Healthy Schools) 

– 3) School Health and Wellbeing Service (school nursing, delivered by 

Tower Hamlets GP Care Group) 

P
age 22



Prevention - Education 
(continued) 

• Direct delivery of parent workshops, pupil assemblies and 

pupil sessions in both primary and secondary schools  

• Support to develop effective school drug policies 

• Drop in sessions for pupils on any health issues, with 

education/signposting 

• Outreach education sessions in Spotlight Youth Clubs 

• Education sessions to professional groups e.g. Leaving 

Care team  

• Awareness campaigns e.g. social media, posters  

• Led by Safe East with support from School Health and 

Wellbeing Service and Healthy Lives 

 

P
age 23



Focus on Prevention  - 
Services 

• Assessing alcohol consumption using AUDIT C tool – by 

GPs, Hostels, Arrest Referral and Reset Services 

alongside an online tool for general public (Don’t bottle it 

up / Drink Coach) 

• Outreach (student population, sexual health clinic, 

mental health teams)  

• In reach into hostels  

• Needle & syringe exchange available at Reset 

Treatment services and selected local pharmacies  

 
  

 
 

P
age 24



 
Focus on Treatment 
 

“Reset” Integrated Drug and Alcohol Service (Outreach & Referral Service, Treatment 

Service and Recovery Support Service)   

• Provide treatment interventions and support with broader health care issues (BBV testing and 

treatment) 

• Family support interventions  

• Access to residential treatment services 

• Advice and support re financial welfare, employment, housing  and training  
 

Health E1 GP practice for homeless 

• A dedicated service to support homeless service users misusing substances 
 

Specialist Midwife Service  

• A dedicated service to support pregnant substance users 
 

Primary Care Drug and Alcohol Service (P-Reset ) 

• Service supporting broader health care needs of service users (incl annual health checks) 

• GPs delivering health checks for dependent drinkers and patients with risky alcohol use 

• Opiate and Crack users receiving annual health check and individual health plan  

• Focus on COPD diagnosis via PEFR and / or Spirometry  

 

P
age 25



Tower Hamlets treatment population and 
treatment system  

• 2,101 residents in treatment (12 months rolling to Oct 2018)  

• The Tower Hamlets treatment system is the largest in London with more than 

2,000 clients a year  

• Treatment system has become more diverse over the last two years, attracting 

more women, young adults and students 

• Client growth driven by new alcohol and alcohol & non-opiate clients  

• Majority of clients are opiate  clients (59%) 

(Source: PHE NDTMS, Oct 2018) 

Substance Group Clients in treatment  

(n) 

All opiate 1,211 

Non-opiate only 152 

Alcohol only 416 

Alcohol & Non-opiate 

only 

290 

TOTAL 2,101 

P
age 26



Tower Hamlets treatment population and 
treatment system  

Complexity levels 
 

• Historically, complexity levels of the Tower 

Hamlets treatment population have been 

very high 

 

• 41% in treatment had very high complexity 

levels compared to 32% on national level 

 

• Measures of ‘complexity’ include, among 

others, type of drug used, age, housing 

status/risk, education or employment status 

and poor quality of life scores. Other factors 

include low levels of social support and 

physical and/or mental health problems. 

 
(Source: PHE NDTMS, 2017/18) 

P
age 27



Client groups most at risk  

• Ageing opiate cohort 

• Injecting clients 

• Clients with mental health needs 

• Dependent drinkers 

• Female, entrenched opiate users 

• Rough sleepers and hostel population 

• Prison leavers 

 

P
age 28



Current Model 

 

 

Reset 

Drugs and 

Alcohol 

Treatment 

Service  

(Care Co-

ordinator) 

 

 

 

Reset 

Homeless 

Service  

Health E1 

 

 

Reset 

Recovery 

Support 

Service 

LB Tower Hamlets: Treatment system  

Residential 

Treatment  

Panel  

Referral  

sources 

Residential 

Treatment 

Recovery 

Services 

Treatment  

Services 

Reset  

Outreach 

Referral 

Service 

 

Hostels 

 

 

 

 

DIP / 

Criminal 

Justice  

 

 

 

Prison / 

CJ 

other  

Probation 

 
Other  

Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Self / 

Family 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GP 

 

 

 

 

Beyond 

the 

Streets  

RLH 

Specialist 

Midwife 

  
  
 D

is
c
h

a
rg

e
s

  
 

 

Social 

Care 

 

 

A&E /  

Hospital 

 

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
s
  

 

P
age 29



Treatment Services / Interventions.   

 

• Pharmacological interventions / prescribing  

• Psychosocial interventions 

• Reset and Primary Care health care assessment  

• Alcohol detoxification & alcohol relapse prevention interventions 

• Short treatment episodes focusing on non-dependent drinkers    

• Mental health: Dual diagnosis nurses based in Treatment services 

and conducting satellites with partner services 

• Reset Treatment Blood Borne Virus team:  provide screening, 

vaccinations and Hep C treatment.  

 

 
 
 

P
age 30



Supporting Recovery   

 

• Recovery support interventions including mental 

health support  

• Counselling  

• Family Support / M-PACT programme 

• Peer support / Service user development 

• Aftercare offer  

 

P
age 31



How are we performing  – 

Outcomes  

• Successful completion rates of alcohol & non-opiate clients and  

non–opiate clients within Top Quartile range  

• Alcohol only successful completion rate above national average  

• Opiate and Crack abstinence  rates within the expected reliable 

change at treatment outcome (TOP) review stage  

• Clients stopped injecting within the expected reliable change at 

TOP Review stage 

• Clients reduce consumption of alcohol as expected at treatment 

review stage 

• Drug treatment resulted in fewer crimes (32% reduction) and 

reduced socio economic costs to society (£18 million) 

 
 
 
 

P
age 32



 
3.  Prevention and Treatment  
      Success - Outcomes 
 

• Clients maintaining and leaving treatment 

successfully   positive impact on physical 

and psychological health and overall quality of 

life  

   Tower Hamlets 

  

 Average client score at  

treatment start  

(Score 0 to 20) 

Tower Hamlets 

  

Average client score at 

planned  

treatment exit  

(Score 0 to 20) 

Physical Health 11.9 14.7 

Psychological Health  11.1 14.9 

Quality of life 11.6 15.5 

P
age 33



Treatment is a Protective Factor 

• Around 60% of rough sleepers in LBTH had drug related needs while around 

50% had alcohol related needs (Source: St Mungo’s CHAIN data, 2017/18) 

• Table below show that for clients in treatment, the proportion of those with acute 

housing problems and at risk of eviction fell while in treatment (Source: Treatment 

Outcome Profile Report, 2017/18).  

   Tower Hamlets 

  

 Reporting at  

treatment start  

(%) 

Tower Hamlets 

  

Reporting at planned  

treatment exit (%) 

Acute Housing risk / problem 

(homeless in the 28 days prior to 

treatment) 

10.7% 3.6% 

Acute Eviction Risk (within the 28 

days prior to treatment) 
6.5% 2.6% 

3.  Prevention and Treatment  
      Success – Outcomes  

P
age 34



Re- Commissioning – areas for  

development 2019/20  

• Engagement with women especially opiate clients and improved offer for 

women 

• Increase the uptake of harm minimisation and treatment interventions for our 

LGBTQ community 

• Number and type of locations treatment interventions are delivered from, 

including outreach and in-reach interventions 

• Improved support for clients with co-occurring mental health issues 

• Increased uptake of recovery support interventions 

• Improved links with housing services and providers 

• Extended and flexible opening hours to meet client needs 

• Continued and increased focus on whole-family interventions and support for 

affected others 

• Increased identification of chronic disease such as COPD, liver disease with 

effective referral pathways into primary or secondary care for treatment 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Non-Executive Report of the:

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
12 February 2019

Report of: Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group
Classification:
Unrestricted

Health Based Places of Safety in North and East London

Originating Officer(s) Carrie Kilpatrick, Deputy Director Mental Health and 
Joint Commissioning, Tower Hamlets CCG
Dan Burningham, Mental Health Programme Director, 
City and Hackney CCG

Wards affected All wards 

Summary
In 2017, the government formally announced changes to section 136 of the Mental 
Health Act 1983 (s136 MHA) through the Policing and Crime Act 2017. These came 
into effect on 11 December 2017.  Under these amendments, CCGs must ensure 
plans for the designation, and appropriate staffing of CCG-commissioned health-
based places of safety (HBPoS).

In May 2018 HLP produced a pan-London business case for fewer better quality 
HBPoS.  This paper outlines the recommended changes and how they will impact on 
Tower Hamlets residents.

Recommendations:

The Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee is recommended to: 

1. Review and comment on the proposed pan-London business case for fewer, 
better quality HBPoS, considering how this will impact on Tower Hamlets 
residents. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A Health-Based Place of Safety (HBPoS) is a space where people can be 
detained under Section 136 of the Mental Health Act and assessed. Patients are 
typically detained under the Mental Health act under Section 136 by Police, then 
transported to a Section 136 Suite to be assessed. 

Since 2015, Healthy London Partnership (HLP) has worked in partnership with 
London’s health and care system to develop a Pan-London business case to 
inform a new model of care for individuals detained under Section 136. 

The business case proposes that the 20 existing dedicated HBPoS sites across 
London are reduced to nine hubs, each with better facilities and immediately 
available 24/7 staffing on site. This includes hubs within North East London. 
The aim is to deliver:

• Better, quality, built environments that offer patients who are vulnerable or 
acutely unwell, the safety, privacy and dignity they deserve. 

 Improved capacity with more rooms being added to fewer sites, to ensure blue 
light services are turned away less often.

 Trained and experienced dedicated staffing to improve the quality and 
efficiency of assessments and the relationships between services.

This paper details the options, impact and the subsequent engagement process 
for the reconfiguration of Health Based Places of Safety and the impact within 
North East London.

Whilst a number of local options have been considered, the recommended 
proposal is a three site HBPoS option, with rooms located at Sunflower Court 
(Outer NE London), the Homerton Hospital, and Newham Centre for Mental 
Health. The current HBPoS at The Royal London would no longer be in use, with 
patients using instead the suite at the Homerton. This will mean that in the region 
of 291 people a year who are currently being conveyed to the HBPoS at the Royal 
London, will likely in the future use a reprovided and expanded suite at the 
Homerton Hospital. This is in recognition that the current Royal London site does 
not meet newly developed standards; particularly in regard to having a distinct 
space to ensure that privacy and dignity is maintained. The changes are planned 
to take affect from June in 2019.

2. CONTEXT

2.1 Section 136 detainments give the police the power to remove a person from a 
public place when they appear to be suffering from a mental disorder to a place of 
safety. The person will be deemed by the police to be in immediate need of care 
and control as their behaviour is of concern. It is important to point out that a 
person is not under arrest when the decision is made to remove the person to a 
place of safety, where they can be assessed by relevant healthcare professionals. 
The police power is to facilitate assessment of their health and wellbeing as well 
as the safety of other people around them. 

Page 38



2.2 London’s crisis care system is under significant pressure and does not have the 
services or infrastructure to ensure people experiencing a mental health crisis 
under a section 136 detainment receive timely, high-quality care that respects 
individual needs. An HBPoS options appraisal in conjunction with an extensive 
engagement process, was undertaken by Healthy London Partnership to identify 
how London’s HBPoS sites could be improved and reconfigured to address these 
pressures. Over 400 Londoners with lived experience of Mental Health crisis and 
carers were involved in developing a new model of care through to be 
implemented across London. 

Workshops, online surveys, and patient statements informed and series of options 
and recommendations. The options appraisal identified several delivery options, 
with the aim of deciding on an optimal Pan-London configuration including:

 the required number of sites; 
 optimal capacity; and
 optimal locations across London.

2.3 There are currently four HBPoS sites operating in North East London:

• Sunflower Court, in Redbridge, provided by NELFT (2 assessment rooms)
• Newham Centre for Mental Health, in Newham provided by ELFT (one room)
• Homerton Hospital, in Hackney provided by ELFT (one assessment room)
• Royal London, in Tower Hamlets, provided by ELFT (one assessment room)

2.4 Based on activity in 2017-2018 The Royal London undertakes 291 individual 
assessments per annum.

Figure 3: Table of INEL Place of Safety Activity at Royal London (12 months 2017-18)

Royal London No.CCGs assessments
% of 
total 

Outside London 18 67 23%
Outside ELFT's footprint 18 58 20%
NH 1 24 8%
TH 1 125 43%
CH 1 17 6%
TOTAL 39 291 100%

3. PROPOSED CHANGES

3.1 The proposed reconfiguration adopts HLPs standards across North East London, 
footprint so reducing current variation in the quality of provision. 

Page 39



The HBPoS at the Royal London Hospital within Tower Hamlets is situated in a 
busy Accident and Emergency department, potentially compromising patient 
safety, privacy and dignity. The unit is also situated one mile away from mental 
health teams and wards, making an immediate transfer to patients problematic 
and drawing on staff support from mental health teams difficult. For these reasons 
the RLH is not considered an appropriate environment by CQC due to the lack of 
privacy.

Figure 1 – Health Based Places of Safety within the North East London STP

3.2 Based on the case for change a three site HBPoS option will be developed, to 
commence from June 2019. North East London will therefore have 3 sites at :

• Sunflower Court (3 rooms) with a dedicated core staff team 
• Homerton Hospital (3 rooms) a re-located suite offering patient privacy and 

staffed with a dedicated core staff team
• Newham Centre for Mental Health (1 room).

This option expands the Homerton site’s capacity to absorb the re-directed s136 
flows from the Royal London. Furthermore, the configuration offers:

 purpose built facilities with increased capacity.

 experienced, qualified staff immediately available 24/7 on all sites.

Page 40



 better care for children and young people with two co-located CAMHS sites. 

Figure 2  HBPoS Three-Site Option

4. IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 Financial Implications
The Department of Health has funded a £388,200 capital development at 
Homerton (2-3 rooms) and £349,000 at Sunflower court (3 rooms). This element is 
thus cost-neutral to the local healthcare economy.  Revenue costs are currently 
under negotiation with local CCGs.

4.2 Activity 
The model predicts that the additional capacity from the closure of the Royal 
London site will be absorbed by the Homerton. In terms of geographical location 
and travel times the table below shows the distances and travel times between 
sites in the INEL area and also includes the nearest adjacent site: the Highgate 
Centre for Mental Health. 

The current HBPoS at The Royal London would no longer be in use, with patients 
using instead the suite at the Homerton. This will mean that in the region of 291 

Page 41



people a year who are currently being conveyed to the HBPoS at the Royal 
London, will likely in the future use a reprovided and expanded suite at the 
Homerton Hospital. This is in recognition that the current Royal London site does 
not meet newly developed standards; particularly in regard to having a distinct 
space to ensure that privacy and dignity is maintained.

Figure 2: Travel distances and travel times by car for Place of Safety Sites

 Homerton  
Royal 
London

Newham 
General

Sunflower 
Court

Highgate 
Centre

Homerton  
3.1 miles/16 
mins

6.2 miles/19 
mins

9.3 miles/26 
mins

6.2 miles/27 
mins

Royal 
London

3.1 miles/16 
mins  

5.5 miles/16 
mins

11.8 miles/31 
mins

6 miles/31 
mins

Newham 
General 

6.2 miles/19 
mins

5.5 miles/16 
mins  

8 miles/23 
mins

10.9 miles/42 
mins

Sunflower 
Court

9.3 miles/26 
mins

11.8 miles/ 
31 mins

8 miles/23 
mins  

16.7 miles/46 
mins

Highgate 
Centre

6.2 miles/27 
mins

6 miles/31 
mins

10.9 miles/42 
mins

16.7 miles/46 
min  

4.3 Equalities implications and risks: The preferred option will improve the safety, 
privacy, and dignity of all service users through improved built environments and 
dedicated staffing teams. A dedicated and trained and qualified staff team is also 
more likely to have a better understanding of the needs of patients and share this 
in good working relationships with the police.

Page 42



Non-Executive Report of the:

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

12 February 2019

Report of: Denise Radley, Corporate Director : Health, 
Adults, and Community

Classification:
Unrestricted

Reablement Service Scrutiny Review Action Plan – 29 November 2017

Originating Officer(s) David Jones, Interim Divisional Director, Adult Social 
Care
Paul Swindells, Service Manager, Localities East and 
Reablement, Adult Social Care

Wards affected All wards – the Reablement Service is borough wide

Executive Summary:
 In 2017 the Committee identified the performance of the council’s 

Reablement Service as the subject for a Scrutiny Review, as it is a key 
gateway into the social care system from acute and community health 
services. The increasing pressure on the NHS and adult social care arising 
from the needs of a growing, older population and continued public spending 
restraint, means the performance of the Reablement Service is an issue of 
major importance to the sustainability and effectiveness of the boroughs 
social care services.

 The Reablement Service offers a short-term, six week therapy-led 
intervention that supports people to regain their abilities to manage everyday 
tasks following an accident, ill health, disability or a stay in hospital, enabling 
them to live as independently as possible in the community. This has 
significant benefits for a person’s health and wellbeing and allows the council 
to focus its resources on those with eligible needs for care and support. 

 National evidence suggests that supporting early and safe discharge from 
hospital into a reablement-type service delivers better outcomes for 
individuals when compared to longer periods of hospitalisation or immediate 
transfer into domiciliary care. It is also cost effective for health and adult 
social care services, both reducing pressure on bed-capacity in the acute 
sector and the need for large care and support plans or placements.

 The Sub-Committee reviewed the performance of the Reablement Service in 
Tower Hamlets to understand four key areas:

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



How is the Reablement Service delivered and how does it perform in Tower 
Hamlets?
What is the patient experience for residents of Tower Hamlets being supported by 
the Reablement Service?
How do partner organisations view the Reablement Service in Tower Hamlets and 
what level of integration exists across services?
How does the Reablement Service in Tower Hamlets compare to London and 
national benchmarks, and what can be learnt from areas of good practice in 
London?

The eighteen recommendations from the Committee (published in April 2017 and 
agreed in November 2017) are across the five main themes below :

1. Improving communication and engagement with stakeholders and key 
partners to improve how the system works and how people can access it

2. Improving the acute hospital discharge pathway and the experience for 
service users

3. Improve service user engagement and outcomes, user feedback mechanisms 
are improved and the service learns from best practice

4. Better social commissioning and exploring the role that the third sector and 
commissioned providers can contribute towards Reablement approaches

5. Encouraging and embedding Reablement ethos and approaches across the 
wider social care system

** Since the Committee Review in 2017 the Reablement Service has assimilated the 
LBTH Sight and Hearing offer into its establishment (from January 2018) following a 
review of that service in 2017.  The Sight and Hearing Equipment Officers (x2) and 
the Rehabilitation Officers for Visual Impairment (x2) are now part of the Reablement 
Service staff group supported via that Services management group, and a review of 
this staff groups roles, duties, and the overall Sight and Hearing offer is the subject 
of ongoing review and re-design within the overall Reablement Service framework.

Recommendations:

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the content and updates within this report related to the previous 
Health Overview and Scrutiny review and associated Action Plan agreed 
in November 2017; and 

2. Comment and scrutinise progress to date including any further 
recommendations to improve performance within the five themes 
highlighted within the Executive Summary.

Page 44



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 To provide direction on matters that the Scrutiny Committee view as relevant 
for consideration in the future planning and provision of a short term support 
Reablement Service within the Borough.

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 The Scrutiny Committee could ask for further detail, examples, and clarity on 
specific aspects of the Reablement Service’s activities since April 2017 in 
meeting the recommendations from the previous review in 2017 prior to 
determining any comments.

3. DETAILS OF THE REPORT

3.1 This report provides an overview of the activities and work that has been 
undertaken by the Reablement Service in meeting the eighteen 
recommendations adopted (in November 2017) following the Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee report from April 2017. 

3.2 The themes highlighted in the Executive Summary and their associated 
recommendations are as follows:

Theme Recommendation
1 Improving communication and engagement with 

stakeholders and key partners to improve how the system 
works and how people can access it

1-3

2 Improving the acute hospital discharge pathway and the 
experience for service users

4-9

3 Improve service user engagement and outcomes, user 
feedback mechanisms are improved and the service 
learns from best practice

10-14

4 Better social commissioning and exploring the role that 
the third sector and commissioned providers can 
contribute towards Reablement approaches

15-17

5 Encouraging and embedding Reablement ethos and 
approaches across the wider social care system

18

3.3 Recommendation 1: That the Reablement Service delivers additional 
training to social care staff in strength based practice to ensure they are 
able to convey the aims of the service and the Reablement approach 
positively to service users and their families/carers.
Updates - Promotional material has been reviewed and where necessary 
updated. A range of presentations have been developed for different 
stakeholders; for example staff induction sessions within Adult Social Care 
(ASC) and partner services such as CMHT.  Reablement web information has 
been updated in 2018. Presentations have been completed with all ASC 
services which interface with Reablement and to colleagues in Community 

Page 45



Health Teams (now known as Extended Primary Care Teams), Community 
Neuro Team, and CMHTs for adults and older people. These presentations 
are being repeated on a quarterly basis. The Service has also completed 
presentations at the International Day for Disabled People, Local Link, Tower 
Hamlets Together Events and to the Neighbourhood Community Teams.  The 
Service offers half day shadowing visits to all staff joining ASC who directly 
interface with Reablement. So far a total of 31 awareness sessions have been 
completed since April 2017.
A Senior Practitioner from the Service will be based one day per week within 
the Hospital Social Work Team from January 2019 to promote Strengths 
based conversations and goal setting with staff at the point of discharge from 
hospital.
Workforce Development Team within ASC have provided 13 sessions 
covering the Care Act changes and principles of strengths based 
assessments, approximately 121 staff across ASC and Health have attended.  
In addition a further 7 sessions are planned for January-March 2019 provided 
by an external training provider - Alder Advice.  There have been 2 sessions 
on motivational interviewing over the same period attended by 15 staff.

3.4 Recommendation 2: That the Reablement Service works with Real to 
review cases where concerns were raised, and use this information to 
improve service delivery for disabled service users via tailored training 
for specific teams or individuals in association with Real.
Updates – Engagement from the management team in Reablement with 
REAL began in September 2017 to explore options for a more collaborative 
relationship between the Services. REAL attended a Reablement Service 
meeting in November 2017 to promote their service offer and met with the 
Reablement Officers in their patch meetings through-out May 2018.  A 
presentation regarding Reablement took place with the Local Link Service in 
November 2017. A subsequent management meeting to review ongoing 
collaborative working occurred in September 2018.  As a result of this there is 
a better understanding of roles and remits across the two services. 
Collaborative working has improved which in turn has been of benefit of 
service users.  Rowan Earle (Acting Information, Advice and Advocacy 
Coordinator) from REAL has commented that, " We feel that there is more 
awareness and understanding between advocates and the Reablement Team 
…..in turn, this has led to more referrals from Reablement (to REAL) for 
information, advice and advocacy…..in cases that advocates have worked on 
that involve Reablement, the client has had greater understanding and 
involvement in the process.”  Analysis of themes from complaints (x6), Locally 
Resolved Complaints (x24), and Members Enquiries (x11) over the period 
April 17-December 18 do not indicate any dissatisfaction with the approach or 
behaviour of the Reablement Service, or its staff, with regards to giving a 
clear explanation of the service offer.

3.5 Recommendation 3: That the Reablement Service develops a 
communications plan linked into the launch of the new integrated single 
pathway to educate the community on the role and aims of the 
Reablement Service so they are better advocate for themselves, and 
identify and challenge poor practice.

Page 46



Updates – Over the period April 17-December 18 there have been ongoing 
forums to try to take forward the integration of the Boroughs Reablement 
offer, and the local Health Trusts Rehabilitation offer linked to the overall 
objectives of the Tower Hamlets Together partnerships.  Initial progress was 
slow however following some early challenges the pace has improved 
throughout 2018.  Monthly ‘short term support’ workstream meetings with 
partners in ELFT have taken place throughout 2018.  A stakeholder event 
took place in October 2018 which was well attended, and a model and 
timetable for a phased development of a single access point into short term 
services for all hospital discharges has been proposed.  Barts Health, as 
stakeholders, have also now been included in these plans. This single access 
point will triage people being discharged from acute admissions to ensure that 
the most appropriate short term support offer is provided.  Future stakeholder 
events and communications are being planned as we move towards Phase 1 
in February 19, at present this first phase does not include the integration of 
the various services that contribute to the overall short term support across 
the Borough.

3.6 Recommendation 4: That the Reablement Service explores options to 
provide emergency provision for supplies through pre-payment cards 
and food vouchers to assist those who are discharged from hospital 
into the service.
Updates – Evidence indicates that the occurrence of such scenario’s is 
sporadic and normally for low cost items.  The present procedure in place 
resolves these emergency situations in the majority of cases. Existing 
procedures have been reviewed and are 'fit for purpose' for the ad hoc 
occasions when it is required.  Staff are able to get reimbursements through 
HR self-service and payroll each month.  The introduction of prepayment 
cards is being taken forward by ASC (possibly as early as April 19) as part of 
the Corporate roll-out of this offer and this will give the Service an additional 
option for resolving emergency scenario’s.

3.7 Recommendation 5: That Barts Health reviews its discharge procedures 
so that all patients are provided with dosette boxes when they leave 
hospital and medication is accompanied by a Medicine Administration 
Record (MAR) chart.
Updates – The Medication Management procedure was started in 2016 and 
remains ongoing whilst discussions continue in the CCG regarding payment 
for the production of MAR charts by Community Pharmacists.  The key 
partners in producing this procedure were Barts Health, ELFT, and Local TH 
Pharmaceutical Committee.  Medication administration training and 
competency assessments for the Reablement Officer staff group 
(approximately x45 staff) was completed collaboratively with partner 
practitioners from ELFT Pharmacy Service and Community Nursing.  
Unfortunately due to the delays in finalising the Medication Management 
procedure the Reablement Service has not been able to allow the 
Reablement Officer staff group to start the medication administration role.  
Our plan once this is resolved is to periodically review staff competencies 
regarding Medication Administration.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
Barts Health completed a draft Statement of Purpose regarding the MAR 

Page 47



chart usage and procedure in 2018 for patients who require medication 
support in the community.  Meetings have been held with Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee who appear motivated for the work to progress, 
however this has still not been concluded.
The Barts Health procedure is not to provide dossette boxes for all patients 
but that this need is assessed on an individual basis and the right level of 
support is put in place in relation to their medication management.

3.8 Recommendation 6: That Barts Health reviews its discharge planning 
process to ensure that the appropriate quantity of correctly fitted 
continence pads are provided to the at the point of discharge.  
Updates – Barts Health - All patients requiring continence pads or with an 
indwelling catheter are referred to our continence nurse for assessment prior 
to discharge. The continence service then direct the wards on how many pads 
to send patients home with – Ryan Smith, Head of Complex Discharge Team, 
Trust Operations, Barts NHS Trust
Updates – LBTH – evidence and feedback suggests that while this is much 
improved over the last 2 years there are still scenario’s and incidents where 
users are discharged from acute services without the necessary supplies to 
manage their continence issues.  These incidents are generally identified at 
an early stage post discharge and community based services, like 
Reablement, do resolve via the use of their Specialist Nurse Practitioner post.

3.9 Recommendation 7: That Barts Health reviews its discharge planning 
process to ensure that discharge does not take place at the end of the 
week without advance communication to the Reablement Service, 
allowing for better planning that takes account of service users full 
range of needs and smoother handovers.
Updates – Barts Health - we continue to work towards not planning 
reablement and complex discharge cases on Fridays. The aim is always to 
discharge these cases Monday to Thursday. I also agree that if we do aim for 
a reablement discharge on a Friday it is with prior arrangement and 
agreement taking place with the reablement service directly - Ryan Smith, 
Head of Complex Discharge Team, Trust Operations, Barts NHS Trust
Updates – LBTH – it is acknowledged that generally communication between 
acute services and Reablement is positive especially where there are 
complex discharges planned, however the pattern of discharges generally 
suggests that a higher percentage do occur later in the working week.  For 
example a snapshot for the month of `November 18 demonstrated that only 
40% of those users referred from acute to Reablement were discharged on 
Monday-Wednesday, and the other 60% occurred on Thursday-Friday, with 
Fridays accounting for 32% of all referrals.

3.10 Recommendation 8:  That the Reablement Service reviews service user 
data to identify which hospital wards require further training to educate 
staff members on the purpose of the Reablement Service, its referral 
pathways and how it aligns with other rehabilitation provision.
Updates - Processes are in place to identify referrers where there is evidence 
of poor understanding of Reablement and its benefits.  Data continues to be 
collected on an ongoing basis.  Monthly meetings with the hospital social work 

Page 48



teams are ongoing.  From January 2019 a Senior Practitioner from the 
Reablement Service will be based at the Royal London Hospital one day per 
week to strengthen our presence, create better opportunities for collaborative 
working, and to create a greater awareness of the Reablement offer, referral 
pathways and how it interfaces with other short term support provision .  
Reablement representation at the weekly Admissions Avoidance and 
Discharge Service (AADS) meetings are already well established.   The 
Reablement Team Manager is a member of a group reviewing AADS 
operational procedures.  Also see feedback on Recommendation 3 regarding 
the single Triage model being planned as part of the Integration programme 
which should assist Acute based teams when planning discharges and 
simplify their understanding on the range of short term support options for 
people.

3.11 Recommendation 9: That the Reablement Service examines the 
procedures for liaison with environmental health so that response times 
to address issues faced by some patients upon discharge, such as bed 
bugs, are improved
Updates - The occurrence of this issue is sporadic for the Service. The 
specific issue of bed bugs is linked with the wider issue of proactive planning 
for hospital discharge where 'deep cleans' or removal of infestations is 
required to facilitate a safe discharge home.  The frequency of infestation 
issues for the Service is infrequent.  Suitable and safe practices and 
procedures are in place to enable a Reablement offer to continue despite any 
infestation and during any environmental health treatment process.

3.12 Recommendation 10: That the Reablement Service improves its 
engagement with service users by working with the Third Sector to help 
strengthen the transparency of its performance monitoring process, 
including closer involvement of the OPRG
Updates – See work already undertaken with REAL under Recommendation 
2.  The Carers Link Service is due to attend the Reablement Service meeting 
in January 19.  Reablement now has a dedicated Carers Champion who 
attends monthly Carer’s Champion meetings.  Reablement have started 
conversations with OPRG and will meet with the group at their next meeting in 
March 19. Discussions are taking place about how we can encourage 
Reablement users involvement in the OPRG. The Service plans to strengthen 
their collaborative relationships with the Carers Link Service (newly 
Commissioned in December 18) and OPRG throughout 2019.

3.13 Recommendation 11: That the Reablement Service establishes 
procedures for contacting service users by phone or in person within 
24hrs of discharge to ensure they are safe and have no immediate 
issues about their care and support.
Updates – For users discharged home from Acute services a welfare 
telephone call is completed by Hospital Social Work Team within 24 hours of 
the person returning home.  In addition to this the Reablement Service 
introduced a welfare checklist/assessment which routinely takes place 48 
hours after a person discharge from hospital. This checklist is completed by 
one of the visiting Reablement Officers, is returned back to their 

Page 49



Independence Planner, and any issues or risks identified are resolved, or 
escalated to a more senior member of staff within the Reablement Service.  
Feedback and evidence has demonstrated that this has assisted in the timely 
identification of high risk service users and action plans put in place to 
safeguard them and ensure the discharge is successful.

3.14 Recommendation 12: That the Reablement Service learns from observed 
good practice in Greenwich and introduces a questionnaire for all 
Reablement service users within the first 5-10 days after discharge from 
hospital.
Updates - Reablement Service completed a visit to LB Greenwich in 
December 2017.  Information and approaches regarding Quality Assurance 
mechanisms were provided by LB Greenwich resulting in a review of Quality 
Assurance activities within the Service.  One outcome was a need for a 
Registered Manager to oversee the 'Provider' section of the Reablement 
Service (including Quality Assurance).  This post has been created with a 
successful candidate due to start in March 19.  A key priority of this newly 
created position will be the roll out of a range of enhanced Quality Assurance 
activities.  New Adult Social Care Quality Standards have been launched in 
January 19, this includes an updated user feedback questionnaire which the 
Service will start using from February 19. Already established QA activities 
within the Service include routine monitoring visits of Reablement Officer staff 
and telephone audits. The Reablement Service is currently working in 
collaboration with the Integrated Commissioning Team for ASC to explore the 
potential to use the Councils Quality Monitoring Team to align the sErvices 
QA activities with those that take place for our External Domiciliary Care 
providers.  In addition to this ASC is planning to take a different approach to 
QA in 2019 and it is expected that the Reablement Service will also 
participate in any new initiatives related to these developments.

3.15 Recommendation 13: That the Reablement Service learns from observed 
good practice in Greenwich and explores how they could use ICT 
systems to improve the coordination and efficiency of staff planning and 
rostering
Updates - Reablement Service visited LB Greenwich in December 2017 to 
explore how ICT systems are used to coordinate and plan rosters.  The 
Greenwich and Tower Hamlets models differ considerably which has made it 
challenging to compare the systems of staff rostering for visits.  There was 
little value gained subsequently for this area of improvement, the Service 
continues to have an ongoing challenge with maximising contracted hours for 
the Reablement Officer staff group.  Recent recruitment of Reablement Officer 
staff in 2018 (x7 new staff) has focused on female staff with community 
language skills, all guaranteed a minimum of 21 hours per week work.  This is 
step in the right direction and as further vacancies arise the Service will look 
to convert full-time vacancies into part-time positions where the opportunities 
to ‘fill rostered hours’ is more easily achieved; however this will take some 
time and is dependent on the turn-over of staff but further recruitment may 
take place in mid-2019.

Page 50



3.16 Recommendation 14: That the Reablement Service explores options to 
link the Reablement Service into existing mental health provision to  
provide more integrated physical and mental health support as part of 
the six week reablement intervention.
Updates – There are joint working protocols in operation with the CMHTs for 
Adults and Older People.  Reablement promotional sessions have been 
completed.  The joint working procedures are firmly established with good 
collaborative relationships between Reablement and CMHTs.  Since the 
establishment of the joint working procedures approximately x20 service 
users on the CMHT pathway have had access to Reablement Officers and 
benefited from joint working arrangements with Reablement Occupational 
Therapists.
A Reablement Service away day on 'Breaking Boundaries' took place in 
November 2017. There were sessions on anxiety and depression, working 
with substance misuse users, and a session on human trafficking and modern 
slavery. A number of staff have attended sessions on Suicide Prevention and 
Domestic Violence as part of the overall training programme to support staff in 
their roles.  Collaborative work started in 2018 between the Reablement 
Service and the Homeless Pathway.  Reablement attends the Homeless 
Forum and is working collaboratively with the boroughs Hostel offer  to 
increase Reablement opportunities with some of their most hard to engage 
residents. Training on working with hard to engage service users continued at 
the Reablement Service Staff Winter Event in January 19.

3.17 Recommendation 15: That the Reablement Service explores the 
possibility of performing a social prescribing or  commissioning 
function to refer people on to appropriate community support/activities 
at the end of its formal intervention.
Updates - This opportunity already exists for staff in the Service where it is 
appropriate to meet an identified social care need for a resident.
The Reablement Service has a ‘universal services champion’ in place who 
can share this knowledge within Team Meeting forums. Regular updates 
provided via team meetings or emails ensure all staff within the Reablement 
Service are educated and aware of community options for users within TH 
and the surrounding areas.

3.18 Recommendation 16: That the Reablement Service develops a forum to 
share information on ongoing projects, available services, and 
opportunities for partnership working between the third sector and 
statutory services, perhaps building on the multi-agency meetings of 
each of the GP localities
Updates – The Reablement Service is a member of the Pan-Provider forum 
within TH and where appropriate uses this forum and network to share 
information as required.  In addition updates and strategies can be 
communicated via the Corporate Communications when appropriate to 
ensure consistency.  Nothing specific to Reablement has been set up to date; 
however the new Locality Model across Health and ASC including forums 
such as the Health and Well Being Boards does offer the Service some 
opportunities in the future to share experiences and messages across 
different partners.

Page 51



3.19 Recommendation 17: That the Reablement Service explores options to 
train formal and informal carers and volunteers to support the 
Reablement process and promote the principles of recovery and 
independence.  
Updates – An IBCF Project bid was successful in Summer 2017 with funding 
for a Specialist OT to work across two specific projects to promote a 
Reablement ethos and approach – the project began in late 2017 and is due 
to finish in March 19.   The project is working with one Commissioned 
Domiciliary care provider (Excel Care) and with two LBTH In-House Day 
Services (Day Opportunities and Riverside) to explore how staff within these 
services can support users in a more strengths based and reabling way.  The 
findings and outcomes from this project will be published in April 19 with some 
potential recommendations regarding how ASC generally can support 
improvements in providers approach to the way the provide care and support 
to vulnerable users in the borough and promote resilience.

3.20 Recommendation 18: That the Reablement Service reviews how social 
care staff introduce Reablement positively to residents and their families 
and examines how the annual re-assessment procedure for people with 
long term care packages to establish how Reablement may assist 
service users. 
Updates – Regular meetings have occurred between Senior staff in 
Reablement and other ASC teams across this period.  A checklist tool has 
been created to support other ASC teams and encourage more accurate 
screening of people who would benefit from a Reablement programme. Some 
ASC teams were Realignment in October 2018 to create the new Locality 
Model which resulted in a turnover of staff within the Initial Assessment Team.  
Work is again ongoing across Reablement and the Initial Assessment Team 
to create a robust understanding of the Reablement offer amongst new staff 
members. From January 19 a Senior Practitioner from Reablement will be 
based at the Hospital Social Work Team one day per week with aim of 
strengthening collaborative working relationships and help social care staff 
include a strengths based, person centred approach when discussing 
referrals to Reablement.

4. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There is no evidence currently that within the cohort of people receiving the 
short term Reablement Service that individuals with any particular protected 
characteristics are disproportionately impacted by these variations.

4.2 During the period April 17 – December 18 the majority (76%) of service users 
are aged 65 and over. Those with new disabilities tend to be younger and 
they often experience traumatic injuries or neurological conditions and are 
more likely to go through a health funded rehabilitation pathway. Female 
users approximately account for 60% of referrals. Approximately 45% of users 
are from white British or Irish background, with Bangladeshi users being the 
next highest user group (25%).

Page 52



4.3 The Service staff group has traditionally been under-represented across the 
female Bangladeshi and Somali; however positive action recruitment in 2018 
has started to contribute to re-dressing this issue, with further positive action 
recruitment planned for 2019 dependent on vacancies.

5. OTHER STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

Care Quality Commission
The Reablement Service is a registered provider of ‘personal care’ services 
and as such is subject to a range of statutory regulations.  Oversight of 
regulatory compliance is the responsibility of the Care Quality Commission.  
As part of the regulatory framework the service is required to have a 
Registered Manager who is responsible for the service and a Nominated 
Individual who is responsible at a senior organisational level for the delivery of 
care and support.  The service was last inspected on 27 February 2017 with a 
rating of ‘good’ across all five Key Lines of Enquiry (Good is defined as ‘the 
service is performing well and meeting our expectations).
One Tower Hamlets Considerations
The core focus of the review is on the council’s approach to delivering an 
integrated and effective Reablement Service as part of its statutory obligations 
under the Care Act 2014.  Reablement is available for all residents, however 
the significant majority of service users are aged 65 and over. The ongoing 
review and improvements are to ensure disabled people in the borough are 
supported to be as independent as possible and have easy access to 
reablement services through improved partnership working with the NHS and 
other key stakeholders, strengthening engagement with the third sector, and 
improving communication to effectively convey of the role of the reablement 
service.    
Best Value Implications
The recommendations in this report are made as part an ongoing requirement 
in helping to secure continuous improvement for the council, to use and target 
resources to those most in need as required under its Best Value duty.
Many of the recommendations relate to improving early intervention and 
prevention activities, which have the potential to reduce demand on health 
and social care services in the longer term. 
Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment
There are no direct environmental implications arising from the report or 
actions undertaken by the Reablement Service.
Risk Management Implications
There are no direct risk management implications arising from the report or 
recommendations. 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Implications
There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the report or 
recommendations. 
Safeguarding Implications
The report relates to a service that has frequent contact with vulnerable 
adults. Although there are no direct safeguarding implications from this report, 
practitioners have remained mindful of potential safeguarding issues during 
the implementation of the recommendations.

Page 53



6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

6.1 This report provides an update on the progress made by the Reablement 
Service against the action plan previously agreed following the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee report from April 2017.

6.2 The Council’s Reablement Service has been fully funded by the Better Care 
Fund since 2015/16, and has a base budget of £2.5m in 2018/19. In addition 
to this, the Service received IBCF funding of £117,000 in 2018/19 to support 
the delivery of specific projects in relation to outcome focussed interventions 
and demand management.  All activities to support the delivery of the 
recommendations in the action plan have from a financial perspective been 
contained within the existing resources available or one-off IBCF funding.

6.3 Since 2017/18 the Reablement Service has been responsible for delivery of 
£850,000 of efficiency savings from budgets relating to the provision of care 
packages. To date, £294,000 has been delivered, with the remaining 
£556,000 to be delivered by the end of the 2019/20 financial year.

6.4 If any additional recommendations are proposed following scrutiny of the 
action plan update, the financial impact will need to be given consideration 
following this committee meeting.

7. COMMENTS OF LEGAL SERVICES 

7.1 The Council is required by section 9F of the Local Government Act 2000 to 
have an Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to have executive 
arrangements that ensure the committee has specified powers. The Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee may consider any matter affecting the area or its 
inhabitants and make reports and recommendations to the Full Council or the 
Executive.

7.2 The Care Act 2014 imposes a number of duties on the Local Authority, 
including the provision of information and advice, to promote the efficient and 
effective operation of a market in services for meeting care and support needs 
and to cooperate with relevant partners including health bodies. The Council 
must provide or arrange for the provision of services, facilities or resources, or 
take other steps, which it considers will reduce the needs for care and support 
of adults in its area. The Council must exercise its social care functions with a 
view to ensuring the integration of care and support provision with health 
provision.  In providing these services, the Council must have regard to the 
duty to promote the wellbeing of the individual.

7.3 The Care and Support (Preventing Needs for Care and Support) Regulations 
2014 make further provisions relating to reablement support, providing 
services to enable the adult to maintain or regain the ability needed to live 
independently at their own home.   

Page 54



7.4 The review explored the current offer within the borough and made the 
recommendations set out within this report. Whilst it was for statutory partners 
to implement some of these recommendations, the recommendations reflect 
the duty for those partners to cooperate with the Council in fulfilling their 
statutory functions under the Care Act 2014, where consistent with their own 
duties. 

7.5 When considering the recommendations above regard must be given to the 
public sector equalities duty to eliminate unlawful conduct and advance 
equality of opportunity under the Equality Act 2010 and the duty set out at 
Section 149 of the 2010 Act.  Provision of an effective reablement service, 
particularly if additional consideration is given to how to address mental health 
as well as physical health needs, should ensure greater compliance with 
these duties.

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report

 NONE.

Appendices
 NONE

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report

 NONE.

Officer contact details for documents:
David Jones, Interim Divisional Director, Adult Social Care- 
david.jones@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Page 55

mailto:david.jones@towerhamlets.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Non-Executive Report of the:

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
12 February 2019

Report of: Denise Radley, Corporate Director, Health, 
Adults and Community

Classification:
Unrestricted

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Finance Overview

Originating Officer(s) Adrian Osborne, Finance Business Partner
Wards affected All wards

Summary
The presentation sets out the budget available to fund Adult Social Care services 
provided by the Council, the type of services it funds, and the draft 3 year MTFS for 
Adult Social Care.

Adding further context, the main specific funding streams for Adult Social Care such 
as the Better Care Fund and the Adult Social Care precept are highlighted and the 
savings programme totalling £5.6m over the next 3 years that needs to be delivered 
by the service is presented. Alongside these uncertainties around the Social Care 
Green Paper, the Fair Funding Review for local government and Brexit give rise to 
additional risks that the Service may need to manage in the future. 

Recommendations:

The Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the contents of the presentation for information only.

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LBTH Adult Social Care Financial 

Overview 

 

12 February 2019 

P
age 59



Page  2 

Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Financial Overview 

How we spend on social care and future funding 

 

 

Previous and Current Year Financial 
Position 

Current Budget and 3 Year MTFS (Indicative) 

What do we spend our money on? 

P
age 60



Page  3 

Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Financial Overview 

Financial Benchmarking - 1 

 

 

How do we benchmark financially compared to the rest of London? 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
…

Is
lin

gt
o

n

C
am

d
en

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h

K
e

n
si

n
gt

o
n

 a
n

d
…

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 u

p
o

n
…

Ea
lin

g

C
ro

yd
o

n

To
w

e
r 

H
am

le
ts

En
fi

e
ld

H
ar

in
ge

y

B
ar

n
e

t

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
…

La
m

b
e

th

B
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
…

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h

So
u

th
w

ar
k

Le
w

is
h

am

N
ew

h
am

H
ar

ro
w

M
e

rt
o

n

H
ac

kn
ey

Su
tt

o
n

B
e

xl
ey

B
re

n
t

W
al

th
am

 F
o

re
st

H
ill

in
gd

o
n

R
e

d
b

ri
d

ge

H
av

e
ri

n
g

B
ro

m
le

y

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w

2017/18 Gross ASC Spend per Head of Population £ 

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 u

p
o

n
…

To
w

e
r 

H
am

le
ts

Is
lin

gt
o

n

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
…

C
am

d
en

La
m

b
e

th

Ea
lin

g

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h

H
ar

in
ge

y

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
…

C
ro

yd
o

n

Su
tt

o
n

K
e

n
si

n
gt

o
n

 a
n

d
…

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

H
ar

ro
w

B
ar

n
e

t

Le
w

is
h

am

W
al

th
am

 F
o

re
st

H
av

e
ri

n
g

M
e

rt
o

n

H
ac

kn
ey

En
fi

e
ld

So
u

th
w

ar
k

B
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
…

B
re

n
t

N
ew

h
am

R
e

d
b

ri
d

ge

B
e

xl
ey

H
ill

in
gd

o
n

B
ro

m
le

y

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w

2017/18 Net ASC Spend per Head of Population £ 

P
age 61



Page  4 

Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Financial Overview 

Financial Benchmarking - 2 

 

 

How do we benchmark financially compared to the rest of London? 

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350

B
ar

n
e

t

C
am

d
en

R
e

d
b

ri
d

ge

Le
w

is
h

am

To
w

e
r 

H
am

le
ts

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h

H
ar

ro
w

Su
tt

o
n

C
ro

yd
o

n

La
m

b
e

th

H
am

m
er

sm
it

…

H
ac

kn
ey

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

W
al

th
am

…

Ea
lin

g

K
e

n
si

n
gt

o
n

…

So
u

th
w

ar
k

H
ill

in
gd

o
n

En
fi

e
ld

B
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
…

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w

H
ar

in
ge

y

M
e

rt
o

n

K
in

gs
to

n
…

Is
lin

gt
o

n

B
e

xl
ey

B
ro

m
le

y

H
av

e
ri

n
g

B
re

n
t

C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

N
ew

h
am

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
…

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h

2017/18 Gross 65+ Learning Disability Spend per 
Head of Population £ 

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

C
am

d
en

Is
lin

gt
o

n

To
w

e
r 

H
am

le
ts

C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

H
ac

kn
ey

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h

M
e

rt
o

n

La
m

b
e

th

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
…

Le
w

is
h

am

So
u

th
w

ar
k

Su
tt

o
n

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w

W
al

th
am

 F
o

re
st

R
e

d
b

ri
d

ge

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h

H
ill

in
gd

o
n

H
ar

in
ge

y

B
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
…

Ea
lin

g

B
re

n
t

B
e

xl
ey

B
ro

m
le

y

En
fi

e
ld

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
…

H
av

e
ri

n
g

K
e

n
si

n
gt

o
n

 a
n

d
…

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
…

B
ar

n
e

t

C
ro

yd
o

n

H
ar

ro
w

N
ew

h
am

2017/18 Gross 65+ Mental Health Spend per Head of 
Population £ 

P
age 62



Page  5 

Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Financial Overview 

Specific Social Care Funding Streams 

 

 
The Council receives a range of funding specifically related to social care: 

Funding Type 2018/19 
£m 

2019/20 
£m 

Comment 

Better Care Fund (BCF) 7.8 7.8 
(assumed) 

National programme seeking to join up health and care 
services - Funding from the CCG supports a range of 
Council services including the Reablement service, 7 day 
hospital social work team and community equipment 

Improved Better Care 
Fund (IBCF) 

11.9 14.9 Direct grant to local government  - used to fund 
demographic and inflationary pressures, safeguarding, 
ethical care charter and a range of one-off projects 

Winter Pressures Funding 1.5 1.5 One off funding to help local authorities alleviate 
pressures on the NHS through the winter months, 
ensuring people can leave hospital when they are ready 

Additional Social Care 
Funding 

- 2.5 New funding to support pressures within adults and 
children’s social care 

Adult Social Care Precept 4.3 5.3 Tool provided by government allowing Councils to 
increase their share of council tax., by a maximum of 6% 
across the 3 years 2017/18 to 2019/20. Tower Hamlets 
profiled this 3% - 2% - 1%..  

P
age 63



Page  6 

Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Financial Overview 

Savings Focus for 2019/20 

 

 

As part of the 2019/20 Adult Social Care budget, the following savings proposals will need to be 
delivered over the next 3 years: 

Helping People with Learning Disability live  Independently – focus on supporting people with 
learning disabilities  live independent lives, supported by a model of progression 
Community Equipment Service – Transfer of the equipment service to an external provider, 
resulting in reduced costs and improved service delivery 
2020/21 and 2021/22 savings – increased focus on transformational activities 

P
age 64



Page  7 

Tower Hamlets Adult Social Care Financial Overview 

Uncertainties and Pressures 

 

 

The following are some of the uncertainties and pressures that will likely impact Adult Social 
Care moving forwards: 
 
• Demographic Pressures – increasing numbers and complexity of service user needs 

 
• Social Care for Adults  Green Paper – Due to be published ‘at the first opportunity’ in 2019 

 
• Fair Funding Review -  new baseline for local government funding allocations  

 
• Brexit 

 
• Better Care Fund – still awaiting guidance for future years 

 
• One off nature of certain funding streams – makes medium-long term planning very difficult 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Non-Executive Report of the:

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
12 February 2019

Report of: 
Steve Collins (Finance)

Classification:
Unrestricted

Tower Hamlets CCG Draft Operating Plan for 2019/20

Originating Officer(s) Steve Collins (Finance)
Wards affected

Summary
Following the publication of the NHS Long Term Plan, and draft publication of CCGs 
allocations for 2019/20 to 2023/24, Tower Hamlets CCG has seen an overall growth 
of 6% in its recurrent funding. 

Set out in the NHS Long Term Plan are key expenditure priorities, this includes 
Mental Health, CHC and Primary Care. However there still remain uncertainties in 
the CCG’s Long Term Financial Plan, mainly in Acute Tariff reform and Brexit.

Recommendations:

The Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the contents of the presentation for information only.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Draft Long Term Plan for 
Tower Hamlets CCG  

 

Steve Collins 

P
age 69



5 Year Funding Summary 
• The CCG draft allocations for 2019/20 to 2023/24 has been published, which is subject to final approval by the NHS 

England Board on 31 January 2019. The allocations is shown in the table below.  

• Total recurrent funding increase of £27m for 2019-20. 

• 8% increase to our Primary Care Co-Commissioning funding. 

• 6% increase to our overall recurrent funding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Revenue Resource Allocation Breakdown Actual Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Programme Allocation 378,026 401,079 418,744 436,387 453,613 470,117

Co-Commissioning Allocation 45,271 49,013 51,564 54,676 57,221 59,809

Running Cost Allocation 6,504 6,464 5,701 5,701 5,701 5,701

Total Recurrent Allocation 429,801 456,556 476,009 496,764 516,535 535,627

Brought Forward Surplus 12,239 13,539 13,539 13,539 13,539 13,539

Non-Recurrent Drawdown 1,000 0 0 0 0 0

Non-Recurrent Allocations 2,735 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total Allocation 445,775 470,095 489,548 510,303 530,074 549,166

Grand Total Allocation - excl. B/F Surplus 433,536 456,556 476,009 496,764 516,535 535,627

P
age 70



Planned Expenditure Split for 2019/20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 71



Do Something vs. Do Nothing – CCG’s 
Expenditure Projection 

• In 2019/20, if we Do Nothing, the projected spend for the CCG is £462m, which is £5m over and above the funding we 
are expecting to receive. 

• The financial gap is expected to deteriorate in future years by an additional £4m to £8m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72



Expenditure Priorities & Uncertainties 
Expenditure Priorities 

• The Mental Health expenditure increasing by 6.7% in line with the Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS). 

• CHC growth of 5%, following increases in 2018-19. 

• Primary Care growth of 8%, in line with the funding the CCG is projected to receive. 

• £5m QIPP target including: 
• Urgent Treatment Centre 
• Medicines Optimisation  
• Diagnostics 
• Outpatient Transformation 
• Corporate Review to meet RCA saving Target 

Uncertainties 

• Payment Reform: 
• Changes to the Market Forces Factor (MFF), which reflects current realities of cost in different areas – 19/20 impact of 

0.82% - £2.3m impact for Tower Hamlets CCG. 
• The duration of the tariff, especially with the increase in the acute net tariff. 19/20 national tariff published on 

11/03/2019. 
• Payment approach for emergency care, proposing a blended approach. 
• Outpatient attendances payments. 
• Maternity payment pathway. 
• Mental health and community payments. 

• 20% real terms reduction to the CCG’s Running Cost Funding in 2020/21 against the 2017/18 Funding. 

• Better Care Fund 

• Brexit 

 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	4 HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE
	ITEM  Presentation

	5 HEALTH BASED PLACES OF SAFETY
	6 REABLEMENT SERVICE SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN
	7 HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BUDGETS
	ITEM  Council ASC Presentation
	ITEM CCG Coversheet
	ITEM CCG Presentation


